HOUSE TAXATION SUBCOMMITTEE ON VEHICLE FEE LEGISLATION MINUTES
February 12, 1981

A meeting was held of the Taxation Subcommittee on Vehicle Fee Legis-
lation at 10:00 a.m. in Room 102 of the State Capitol- With Chairman
Rep. Bob Sivertsen presiding, the following members were present: Reps.
Nordtvedt, Harp, Neuman, Switzer, Underdal, Williams and Harrington.

The question of deductibility on Federal Income Taxes was discussed.
If a tax is based on value, it is deductible from the Federal Income
Tax; it doesn't have to relate to mill levies or assessments. Commerce

Clearing House information on this matter will be provided at a future
meeting. .

Regarding other bills in the House on insurance liability: the Judiciary
Committee is considering HB's 165, 226, and 546, which deal with re-
vising motor vehicle mandatory liability. The bills are in subcommittee.
Present law requires that the applicant certify and display to the
County Treasurer an auto liability insurance policy, or other proof;
this might be rewritten. The new law would require a person to carry
an insurance card approved by the Division and issued by the carrier.
If this Committee is going to provide for mail registration, this
might relate to that bill. Chairman Sivertsen stated that if reregis-

tration is done by mail, at present, the applicant would have to submit
a certificate of registration.

Mr. Larry Majerus, Administrator of the Motor Vehicle Division, Depart-
ment of Justice, then spoke. Currently, the counties conducting
registration by mail require the individual to sign the certification
statement on the postcard they receive, and as far as displaying proof,

it is addressed in two ways: (a) the policy number, company, agency
and expiration date are listed by the individual, or (b) other counties
want the "pocket card." He stated that the Judiciary Committee will

be recommending that the proof or display of policy to the Treasurer
will be deleted. It is ambiguous and hard on the Treasurer to make
the determination.

Rep. Sivertsen wanted to know what the penalty would he for false
swearing and was told it was a misdemeanor. Mr. Majerus added that
possibly it would be required that the card be carried in the car at
all times.

Rep. Williams brought up the situation where a month after registra-
tion the policyholder cancelled the insurance out. The only way
this can be discovered is if the person then has an accident or was
otherwise apprehended. Some states do monitor this, but in Montana
it would cost too much.

Chairman Sivertsen stated that the issue the Subcommittee needed to
address was how to handle proof-of-insurance if registration is done
by mail. He added that it appeared that it could be accomplished by
using a post card. Rep. Neuman added that proof could be shown at
the time the plates were picked up.



House Taxation Subcommittee on Vehicle Fee Legislation Minutes
February 12, 1981 Page 2

In response to a suggestion from Rep. Underdal, Rep. Sivertsen said
a repealer of staggered registration could be included in HB 428.

Mr. Majerus pointed out that the penalty for non-compliance with

the mandatory insurance provision would probably be increased by

the Judiciary Committee. Rep. Williams said that often the persons
not complying with the insurance requirement were those who couldn't
afford insurance. He wondered if the average automobile owner wasn't
going to still have to carry insurance against the uninsured motorist.
Mr. Majerus pointed out that oftentimes a person thought he had un-
insured motorist coverage and often it was only for medical and not
for property. He confirmed that the State only required liability
insurance.

Chairman Sivertsen then brought up the staggered registration gquestion.
Rep. Harp expressed reluctance to include a number of changes in one
bill. Mr. Oppedahl (Legislative Council) said that he was not sure
that including a provision doing away with staggered registration in
HB 428 would be workable. Rep. Sivertsen pointed out that a Committee
bill could be drafted to address this issue.

Rep. Sivertsen then solicited the opinion of Mr. Daryl Schoen, Motor
Vehicle Fee Division, Department of Justice,on staggered registration.
He stated that his employees did not want yearly registration. They
are also opposed to mailing out reminders. Rep. Sivertsen then asked
his opinion on how often the Blue Book should be changed. Another
witness stated that not all Blue Books covered all vehicles, and the
January Blue Book was the only one that was all-inclusive. Mr. Schoen
pointed out that the book is always missing the current year models,
also. The other witness added that as a practical matter, it was

hard enough to get the Blue Books once a year on time.

The Subcommittee reached a consensus that staggered registration
wouldn't be addressed in the form of an amendment or a Committee bill.

It was brought up that SENATE BILL 126 changed valuation from a retail
value to a wholesale value.

Rep. Williams brought up the issue of what assessment date to use.
Presently assessors are using the January RBlue Book. Rep. Nordtvedt
feels this is objectional; because of the changing property values on
vehicles. Mr. Majerus agreed to check to see if a complete Blue Book
listing would be available more than once a year. Rep. Nordtvedt
said that he thought quarterly revisions would be adeguate. Rep.
Neuman expressed support for updating once or twice per year.

Rep. Williams wanted to know why Rep. lNordtvedt wanted to do eval-
uations on a quarterly basis. Rep. Nordtvedt replied that a car, de-
pending on when you bought it, was worth a different amount of money.
Rep. Williams replied that this evened out after the first year.



House Taxation Subcommitte on Vehicle Fee Legislation Minutes Page 3
February 12, 1981

John Clark, Department of Revenue, said that sometimes the person

who registers later would be at a disadvantage from one who registered

in October. Rep. Sivertsen said that possibly the advantage of using
quarterly Blue Books wouldn't be as great as the Subcommittee had thought
Mr. Clark said the values in January and October were looked at in three
consecutive years to see if the people registering in January caught up
with the people registering in October. The study showed that they may
be at a disadvantage. Mr. Schoen suggested that possibly some models
appreciated while others depreciated.

Mr. Majerus pointed out that, if the computer in Deer Lodge were to
take over vehicle taxation, the Counties would still need to be fur-
nished with a hard copy of the computer file, in order to verify
assessments in case of disputes. He added that the amount of disputes
would definitely be reduced if trade-in value was used as the assess-
ment figure.

Mr. Schoen then shared his information on the system presently being
used in computer cataloging. The computer file is composed of the
license plate number, title number, name and vehicle indentification.
Seven counties are on line with the master file. For assessment pur-
poses, a tax code number has also been added to the files to be in-
cluded for purposes of pre-assessing. However, some counties do not
provide a tax code number. Under a fee system, they wouldn't have
the problem of tax code numbers to identify people.

Rep. Sivertsen asked Mr. Schoen what the cost factor would be if the
Legislature went with a bill centralizing everything out of his
office. He said the initial program would have somewhat of a cost
impact, but that was the only significant impact he foresaw. Any
problems generated by a new system would he offset by the problems
which 800 School Districts cause at present. He said that about
5,000 pre-assessed notices are presently being sent out every year.

Rep. Neuman wanted to know how the staggered system was working as

far as licensing being paid for every year. Mr. Majerus stated that
they did catch up every year after October; and back taxes are enforced.
He added that there were other factors besides expired registrations
that kept files noncurrent.

When asked if the Motor Vehicle Division planned to assess the entire
State eventually, Mr. Majerus said that when the feel bills failed ———
during the previous session of the Legislature, they felt an obliga-
tion to do something to help with the problems on the county level,

and their choice was to initiate computer assessing. Mr. Majerus

said the initial re-programming would comprise the major initial cost
of going to computer assessing; he stressed that there was going to

be efficiency in the new setup.

Mr. Schoen stated that their mailing shouldn't increase substantially.



House Taxation Subcommittee on Vehicle Fee Legislation Minutes Page 4
February 12, 1981

Rep. Underdal wanted to know about the number of license plates
presently out without any cars. Mr. Majerus said that the system
would have to be designed for automatically replacing plates. He
would like to identify plates on the road that are a certain number

of years old and replace them. He wouldn't recommend that they ever
go with a complete reissue; a systematic reissue would be much more
economical; a study has been done on this by the Division. He stated
that there is no reserve fund for license plate reissuing, because the
Motor Vehicle account is "bust." Rep. Sivertsen suggested the possi-
bility of going to only one tag. Mr. Majerus said that would save the
State $17,000, but law enforcement would be against it.

Rep. Sivertsen then brought up the possibility of having the license
plate go with the car rather than the owner. Mr. Majerus said that in
the late 1960's this was the way it was done, and there was a problem
with getting people to file title with their cars. Lienholders had to
have some other method to guarantee that the lien was being filed. He
stated that he was not opposed to going back to the o0ld system. It had
been hoped that the new system would help cut down on the stolen vehicle
problem, but it hasn't. He suggested that this would be a good interim
project to research, but it would take a lot of work to close all the
related loopholes.

Rep. Williams expressed the personal preference to keep the license
plate with the individual. It was added that law enforcement used the
information generated under the present set-up. Mr. Majerus said it
would simplify the computer system if the plate stayed with the car.

Chairman Sivertsen suggested that the Subcommittee discuss the impact
of going from an advalorem to a different type of taxation. A handout
on the statutes concerning local government finances were distributed.
See Exhibit "A." Mike Stephen, Montana Association of Counties, had
provided it. Bill Duffy, a research person for the Association, was
present to answer questions. Calculations on the sheet reflect the
10-month Assessor Report. Rep. Sivertsen exvlained that the figures
on the sheet were what would be needed for compensation for a 15% loss
in taxable value. If a fee system is enacted, the places presently at
their bonding limitations will be in trouble. Rep. Sivertsen stressed
that this would have to be addressed. Mr. Duffy stated that the formula
could apply to any of the fee bills before the Legislature. It was
pointed out that under HB 428, the tax base is a separate question.

SENATE BILL 355, which the handout was related to, addresses the loss
in tax base which a fee bill could create.

Mr. Clark said that in a sense this bhill would be "grandfathering
people in" who are already at their bonding limits.

Rep. Williams wanted to know how the 15 - 20% loss in revenue would be
made up under HB 428. He stated that one defense for using the Severance
tax to make up the difference would be that the o0il industry is connected



House Taxation Subcommittee on Vehicle Fee Legislation Minutes Page 5
February 12, 1981

to the automobile industry. Rep. Harp pointed out that if the money
was taken from the oil industry, the consumer would be paying. Rep.
Harrington pointed out that the consumer was paying right now. Rep.
Underdal stated that decontrol of oil prices and increased oil pro-
duction would help the general fund out.

Chairman Sivertsen said he felt the Subcommittee was ready to start
putting HB 428 together, and added that funding to make up for the
revenue reduction will have to be discussed. Two alternatives are
revenue sharing or a gas tax. He stressed that there has to bhe a
replacement of lost revenue if any of the Subcommittee's bills were
to pass; the fact that these two areas wiill have to go hand in hand
will be addressed at a future meeting.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:00 a.m.

fol oA e T,

Rep. Bob Sivertsen, Chairman

da



Tk 47178~ “FEe B’

eyt
ExH7IT AN

R

STATUTLE  CONCHRNILG LOCAL GOVLRITIENT FINAINL

Oy
ede
-

N oot N Ty
YLooalidl LOWnh

Loot limic (7-3-1320 ~ Raised {frem 18, to 287 ol taxabiec valu:d.
{iov current statute ¢ Ilyv reads 5% ol assessed vaiue, due Lo &
cretting error in oo 1977 bili. The eifective rats is 8L o Tan-

.oanle value. !

o

pond limit (7-7-4207+ - Raisced from 18 valuc.

Additional debt ror water and sewer svstems (7-7-4232) - Raised
Fromn 3600 toe 5500 of taxable valu

e for acguirins natural gas svstem (7=13-41057 - Raised from
i

o te 17 of tavable valu:

tax-—-

Ft

Debt for pus service (7-14-44072; - Raised from 1Z% to 28% o
le valuc. -

bDebt for cultural purposes (7-16-4101) - Raised from 10.87 to 16.5%
raxable values. (Statute now reads 3% of assessed value due to

677 drafting error. The effective limit is 10.8%;.

Lo - D [ ' o= Baised fre- o 1L.80 to 140 o0
- N o - B g P P
- i "y I L RN Gl RS ST i Liiecl—

ive rate is 10.8. o1 taxable

4y - ower limit for fire-
.0% (the average for all

Firemen's pension (19-11-503 and 19-11-
men pension reserve. Raised from 2.0 t
cities).

o] Uw
(W8] J‘

School Districts

Bond limits (20-9-405) - Limit raised from 297 to 45% of taxable
Valu

Dollding reserve runl (20-9-572 - L

i
taxable value. (Stdtute now reads 5% of as
ive limit is 297 of taxable value). -

Citv-Ccunty Consocolidated Governments= s
pend limit (757-107) - Raised from 27, o 39L cf tamzable valiucd.

Limit on additional debt for water and sewer system:s {7-7-138) -
Raised frem 274 to 397 of taxable valus

Countic-

SL( 5L(_;



Autnoric

[ .
Talsea

LY om

DT Llmot
Sy R
LUT ATl L

500001

Pefunding b

aole vardo,

value., (
errey.  Thne
thoric o®
taxable val
limitc is 18

Qtner tvpes of

condauct
o0 oy

PRV o e

Q

(7-7-21000

- EES

R D I
Vi Jor om
s oralscd

ond limit

Yark board debt (7-106-2
(Statute now rcads

effective

s dssue ho
ue . Stat
PN

nusiness

oL

P

taxal

on

TYOTL il to
S e
\/—lu—:J_JJ

37
limit 1

limit

-
v

cL

TaLS s
PR
PAPEaP

Raisc:

assess

L —~
S IS B
] [

ITOm

raxable

Hospital
of
limis

is 18&

~

PSR
[ N s )
Layaoae valL

Not amended

Salarv schedule for county offices
on 1579 taxable value,

district bond
taxable wvalue.

.

districts

LOnNG

limit

nd 1

in

(Statute now reacds

so this bill

L5

e
T
. e

10,87 =0

¢d value auz

ToA2TT3Y G e 1
K ¢ e d ) { 14 P
23, Cotaxaovie vol

- o R a0
- ! RT S TU S
K O TOr Cou
ided repain

N o- R
rom 157 to 22.357 :

value o,

aised from 187 te 22070
assessed value. Lrife:
- Raised from 18% to

of assessed value.

EZ

Rzised from 157

S o < <
- The schedule
affect it.

10

Tective

~
tao

is based



